
       Winnebago County Board 
       Regular Adjourned Meeting 
       Thursday, June 14, 2018 
 

 

A M E N D E D   A G E N D A 
 
 
 
Call to Order ------------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 
 
  
 
Agenda Changes--------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 
 
 
Roll Call-------------------------------------COUNTY CLERK, TIANA J. McCALL 
 
 
 
Invocation ------------------------------------------------------------------------J. Webster 
 
 

Awards, Presentations and/or Proclamations and Public 
Participation 

 
 

Awards -    None 
 
Presentations  -    None   

 
Proclamations                -   “2018 Fred VanVleet Fan Fest” – Accepted by 
       Fred VanVleet     
               
Public Participation       -    None    
 
 
Minutes 
 
“May I Please Have a Motion to Approve the Minutes from May 10, 2018 
Meeting and to Layover the Minutes from the May 24, 2018 Meeting. 
 
 



Announcements & Communications-------------------TIANA J. McCALL 
 
“The Items Listed Below Were Received as Correspondence” 
Chairman Haney To Be “PLACED ON FILE”. 
 
 
1. County Clerk McCall received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission the following: 
 

a. Byron STATION, Units 1 and 2 – NRC Inspection of Temporary Instruction 
2515/194, Inspection of the Licensee’s Implantation of Industry Initiative 
Associated with the Open Phase Condition Design Vulnerabilities in Electric 
Power Systems (NRC Bulletin 2015-01) – Inspection Report 05000454/2018011; 
05000455/2018011 

 
b. Braidwood Station, Byron Station, Clinton Power Station, Dresden Nuclear 

Power Station, LaSalle County, and Quad Cities Nuclear Power Station – 
Information Request to Support the NRC Annual Baseline Emergency Action 
Level and Emergency Plan Changes Inspection 

 
c. Federal Register / Vol. 83, No. 99 / Tuesday, May 22, 2018 / Notices 
 
d. Preliminary RAIs for Braidwood and Byron Stations 50.69 Amendment 
 
e. Operator Licensing Examination Approval 
 
f. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2 – NRC Design Basis Assurance Inspection 

(PROGRAMS) Inspection Report 05000456/2018012 and 05000457/2018012 
 
g. Federal Register / Vol. 83, No. 108 / Tuesday, June 5, 2018 / Notices 
 
h. Federal Register / Vol. 83, No. 108 / Tuesday, June 5, 2018 / Notices 
 
i. Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2, and Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2 – 

Correction to Technical Specification Amendment Identification Format 
(Additional information on file in County Clerk’s Office) 

 
j. Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2, and Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2 – 

Correction to Technical Specification Amendment Identification Format 
(Additional information on file in County Clerk’s Office) 

 
k. Braidwood Station, Unit 2 – Relief from the Requirements of the American 

Society of Mechanical Engineers Code (EPID L-2017-LLR-0155) 
 
l. Byron Station, Units 1 and 2 – Confirmation of Initial License Examination 
 

2. County Clerk McCall received from Nancy L. McPherson, Winnebago County 
Recorder the Monthly Report for May 2018 

 



3. County Clerk McCall received the following from the Illinois Environmental 
Protection Agency: 

 
 a. Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste – Description of Project: 

Annual Closure and Post-Closure Care Cost Update in Accordance with 
Condition X.8 of Permit Modification No. 19.       
 

b. Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste – Description of Project: 
Annul Closure and Post-Closure Care Post Update in Accordance with 
Condition IX.8 of Permit Modification No. 70. 

 
c. Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste – Description of Project: 

Annual Post-Closure Care Cost Update in Accordance with Condition IX.8 
of Permit Modification No. 88.   

  
d. Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste – Description of Project: 

Annual Closure and Post-Closure Care Cost Update in Accordance with 
Condition X.8 of Permit No. 2013-295.  

 
e. Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste – Description of Project: 

This Application Addresses Condition X.7.  
 

4. County Clerk McCall received from Comcast a letter regarding Changes to the 
Comcast Channel Line-up in Our Community. 

 
     

 
 
 
     
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
     
  

GO TO REGULAR AGENDA 
 
 



Page | 1  
 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD  
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse 

400 West State Street ~ Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room ~ 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, June 14, 2018 

6:00 p.m.  
 

Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  
• Awards – None 
• Presentations – None 
• Proclamations – “2018 Fred VanVleet Fan Fest” – Accepted by Fred VanVleet 

 
Board Member Correspondence 
 
Chairman’s Report 
 
County Administrator’s Report 
 
Consent Agenda 

• Raffle Report  
 

Standing Committee Reports 
 

1. Finance Committee – Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Budget Amendment 2018-029 – Highway Department Budget Amendment – Budget 

Neutral to be Laid Over 
C. Resolution Authorizing Change of Plan Administrators for the County of Winnebago 

Deferred Compensation Plan and the ICMA Retirement Corporation Plan  
 

2. Zoning Committee – Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
A. Planning and/or Zoning Requests:   

1. SU-02-18  A special use permit to allow a batch plant inclusive of an asphalt / 
concrete crushing and storage facility in the AG, Agricultural Priority District 
for the property commonly known as 11200 N. Main Street, Rockton, IL 61072 
in Rockton Township, District 2  

B. Committee Report 
 

3. Economic Development Committee – Fred Wescott, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 

 



Page | 2  
 

4. Operations & Administrative Committee – Gary Jury, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Awarding Bid for Blast Chiller 
C. Resolution Awarding Bid for Laboratory Services 
D. Resolution Approving Amendment to Health and Wellness Services Agreement with 

OSF Saint Francis, Inc. 
E. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute Lease Agreement 

for Space at 555 North Court Street (United Dental Partners, LLC) 
F. Ordinance Amending Section 62-14 (Discrimination/Harassment Policy) of Chapter 62 

of the County Code of Ordinances to be Laid over 
G. Ordinance Amending Sections of Chapter 2, Article II, Division 2 of the County Code 

of Ordinances (Presentation of Budget Amendments to the Finance Committee) to be 
Laid Over 

H. Ordinance Creating Sections of Chapter 2, Article III, Division 5 (Operations Officer) 
of the County Code of Ordinances to be Laid Over 

I. Ordinance Creating Sections of Chapter 2, Article III, Division 6 (Chief Strategic 
Initiatives Officer) of the County Code of Ordinances to be Laid Over 

 
5. Public Works Committee – Dave Kelley, Committee Chairman 

A. Committee Report 
B. (18-015) A Resolution Determining The General Prevailing Rate of Hourly Wages in 

the County of Winnebago, Illinois  
Cost:  $  n/a      C.B. District:  County Wide 

C. (18-016) A Resolution Authorizing an Agreement for the Acceptance of Property 
Transfer from the State of Illinois of Right-Of-Way on County Highway 11 (Perryville 
Road) Between Harrison Avenue and Guilford Road 
WC Cost:  $00.00      C.B. District:  8 & 11 

D. (18-017) Resolution Appropriating the Local Share of Funds and Authorizing the 
Execution of a Local Public Agency Agreement for Federal Participation for Guardrail 
Improvements at Various Locations throughout the County (SECTION 17-00637-00-
GR) 
WC Cost:    $100,000     C.B. District:  County Wide 
Federal:       $900,000 
Total Cost:  $1,000,000 

E. (18-018) Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Track Skid Loader  
Cost:  $53,020      C.B. District:  County Wide 

F. (18-019) An Ordinance Amending Chapter 82 of the Winnebago County Code 
Regulating the Placement of Utilities and Facilities within the Rights-of-Way of 
Winnebago County Highways 
Cost:  $  n/a      C.B. District:  County Wide 

G. (18-020) An Ordinance Amending Chapter 82 of the Winnebago County Code 
Regulating the Placement of Small Wireless Telecommunication Facilities within 
County Right-Of-Ways or on County Owned Infrastructure 
Cost:  $  n/a      C.B. District:  County Wide  

 
6. Public Safety Committee – Dave Fiduccia, Committee Chairman 

A. Committee Report 



Page | 3  
 

 
Unfinished Business 
 
New Business 
 
Closed Session 
 
Adjournment    

 
Next Meeting: Thursday, June 28, 2018 





 

CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT 



 

ADMINISTRATOR’S 
REPORT 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 







 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



1 
 

2018 Fiscal Year Finance: June 7, 2018 
 Lay Over: June 14, 2018 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: June 24, 2018 
Ted Biondo, Finance Committee Chairman   
   

 
2018 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 and recommends 
its adoption. 

ORDINANCE 
 
 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 at its September 28, 2017 meeting; 
and,  
     

 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the following increases are hereby authorized. 

 
2018-029 Highway 
Reason: Additional budget is needed in personnel for 461-County Highway Fund 
Alternative: None 
Impact to fiscal year 2019 budget: No impact to overall budget.  Reductions being made in other 461 accounts, 
463 Federal Aid Fund, and 464 Motor Fuel Tax Fund to keep budget within overall spending amounts 
Revenue Source: 461-45120 Capital Lease Payments, 461-46330 Capital Roadway Projects, 463-41110 FA Match 
Regular Salaries, 463-41130 Federal Aid Match OT Salaries, 464-41110 MFT Regular Salaries, 464-46330 Capital 
Projects 
 Acct Description Org Obj Prj  
 Regular Salaries 46100 41110  710,000 
 Capital Lease Payment 46100 45120  (150,000) 
 Capital Roadway Projects 46100 46330  (130,000) 
 Regular Salaries 46300 41110  (50,000) 
 Overtime Salaries 46300 41130  (60,000) 
 Regular Salaries 46400 41110  (260,000) 
 Capital Projects 46400 46330  (60,000) 

Total Adjustment: $ 0 
  



2 
 

                                                                                                      Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

   
(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 





Sponsored by:  Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

Submitted by: Finance Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CHANGE OF PLAN 
ADMINISTRATORS FOR THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN AND THE ICMA 
RETIREMENT CORPORATION PLAN 

 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago provides to its employees a Deferred 
Compensation Plan and the ICMA Retirement Corporation Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, both of those plans require a Plan Administrator to administer the plan and 
execute documents as needed; and 
 

WHEREAS, due to a change in personnel it is necessary to change the Plan Administrator 
for the Deferred Compensation Plan and the ICMA Retirement Corporation Plan. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that Molly Terrinoni, Finance Director of Winnebago County is hereby 
appointed Plan Administrator for the County of Winnebago Deferred Compensation Plan and the 
ICMA Retirement Corporation Plan. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said appointment would be effective June 15, 2018. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

 

 



 

AGREE     DISAGREE 

 
______________________________  __________________________________  
Ted Biondo, Chairman       Ted Biondo, Chairman 

 
______________________________  __________________________________ 
Gary Jury       Gary Jury 

 
______________________________  __________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman     Joe Hoffman 

 
______________________________  __________________________________ 
Burt Gerl     Burt Gerl 

 
______________________________  __________________________________ 
David Boomer     David Boomer  

 
            ______________________________  __________________________________ 

Steve Schultz     Steve Schultz 

 
______________________________  __________________________________  
Jaime Salgado     Jaime Salgado 

 
______________________________  __________________________________  
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 

                                          
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, this ____ day of ___________________, 20___. 

 

____________________________________ 
 Frank Haney 

                                                                                             Chairman of the County Board 
ATTESTED BY:       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
____________________________ 
Tiana J. McCall  
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 













 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 June 14, 2018  

 
A. PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

TO BE LAID OVER:  NONE 

TO BE VOTED ON:   

1. SU-02-18 A special use permit to allow a batch plant inclusive of an asphalt/concrete 
crushing and storage facility in the AG, Agricultural Priority District, requested by 
Northern Illinois Service Co., applicant, represented by Attorney James A. Rodriguez, for 
property commonly known as 11200 N. Main Street, Rockton, IL 61072 in Rockton 
Township. 

PIN(s): 03-35-200-016 and Part of PINS: 03-35-200-015  
& 03-35-200-017 C.B. District: 2 

Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: N/A 
 ZBA RECOMMENDS: APPROVAL WITH ZBA CONDITIONS (6-1) 
 ZC RECOMMENDS: MOTION TO APPROVE WITH ZC CONDITIONS 

FAILED (1-6) 
 
     
B.   COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not  
       intended as a public notice): 

  
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting 

is scheduled for Tuesday, July 17, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the County 
Administration Building.  
   

• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 
tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, June 27, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the County 
Administration Building. 



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 
  

 

Purchasing Department 
404 Elm Street • Room 202 • Rockford, IL 61101  Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date:   June 7, 2018 
To:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
Prepared by:    Purchasing Department 
Subject:    Blast Chiller Bid 18B-2150       
 

County Code:    Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 
 

Background: 
River Bluff Nursing Home is in need of a new Blast Chiller for their facility.  Their current 
chiller is over 20 years old and is not functioning properly.  It has been repaired multiple 
times and it is no longer cost effective to continue with expensive repairs compared to the 
purchase of a new chiller.  
 

The Purchasing Department went out for Bid 18B-2150 on May 22, 2018.  There were at total 
of six bidders, with The Boelter Companies being the lowest responsive and responsible 
bidder. The County Purchasing Department and River Bluff Nursing Home staff have 
reviewed the bid results and agreed the award should be with The Boelter Companies.  
Please see Bid Tab for more details. 
 

Recommendation:  
Therefore, it is recommended that The Boelter Companies be awarded Bid #18B-2150. 
 
 



COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Gary Jury 
Submitted by:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
   

2018 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING BID FOR BLAST CHILLER 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Article VI, Section 2-341, that all purchases for and contracts for supplies, materials, equipment, and 
contractual services, the value of which is estimated to exceed $12,000.00 shall be based on 
competitive proposals by the County Board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, competitive bids were received by the County Purchasing Department on May 
22, 2018 for the following: 
      

BLAST CHILLER   18B-2150 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the bids received for the aforementioned item(s) and 
recommends awarding the bid as follows: 
 

THE BOELTER COMPANIES 
1071 WEST DIVISION 
CHICAGO, IL 60642 
SEE ATTACHED TAB 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee has determined that the funding for 
the aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 

 

72000-46430 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Operations & Administrative Committee of the County 
Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Blast Chiller bid and that a purchase 
order be issued to THE BOELTER COMPANIES, 1071 WEST DIVISION, CHICAGO, IL 60642 in the 
amount of TWENTY FOUR THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED and EIGHTY-NINE DOLLARS ($24,589.00) plus 
an additional ONE THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDERED AND SIXTY-FOUR DOLLARS ($1,564.00) for a Roll-In 
Pan Cart. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 

immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 



and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Nursing Home Administrator, Director of 
Purchasing, Finance Director and County Auditor.  

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 

  
BID TAB 

BLAST CHILLER – 18B-2150 
BID OPENING- 5/22/18 

 

 
 

 
VENDORS 

 
Federal 

Supply USA 

 
Central 

Restaurant 
Products 

 

 
Great Lakes 

Hotel 
Supply Co. 

 

The Boelter 
Companies 

Sam Tell and 
Son Inc. 

Douglas 
Equipment 

(ITEM 1) 
ONE BLAST 

CHILLER  
$29,532.43 $25,962.00 $24,950.00 $24,589.00 $25,269.78 $28,106.87 

(ITEM 2) 
ONE ROLL-IN 

PAN CART 

$1,815.66 
Based on 
Shipping 
w/Blast 
Chiller 

$1,742.00 $1,590.00 $1,564.00 $1,730.22 $1,793.13 

DETAIL OF 
THE 

WARRANTY 
 

5 Yr. Limited 
Warranty on  
Compressor                                 
1 Yr. Parts & 

Labor 

5 Yr. Limited 
Warranty on 

Compressor1 
Yr. Parts & 

Labor 

5 Yr. Limited 
Warranty on  
Compressor                           
1 Yr. Parts & 

Labor 

5 Yr. Limited 
Warranty on  
Compressor                                 
1 Yr. Parts & 

Labor 

5 Yr. Limited 
Warranty on  
Compressor                             
1 Yr. Parts & 

Labor 

5 Yr. Limited 
Warranty on  
Compressor                                
1 Yr. Parts & 

Labor 

DELIVERY 
TERMS Net 30 Days 

4-Week 
Lead Time 

from 
Factory 

N/A 2-3 Weeks 30 Days ARO 3-4 Weeks 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                               

  
  
 
 



 
  

 

Purchasing Department 
404 Elm Street • Room 202 • Rockford, IL 61101  Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date:   June 7, 2018 
To:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
Prepared by:    Purchasing Department 
Subject:    Laboratory Services Bid 18B-2143      
 

County Code:    Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 
 

Background: 
Winnebago County Health Department and River Bluff Nursing Home are in need of clinical 
laboratory services for their facilities.  Dr. Martell contacted us and explained that there has 
never been a formal competitively bid contract in place for these services in the past.   Her 
request was that we look at all of the testing being done in the County of Winnebago to 
establish a countywide contract to include all facilities in need of clinical laboratory services.  
Several departments opted out of this formal bid process due to their laboratory services 
needs being very specific. 
 

The Purchasing Department went out for Bid 18B-2143 on April 27, 2018.  There were a total 
of two bidders, with Laboratory Corporation of America Holding (LabCorp) being the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder.  The Purchasing Department, Winnebago County Health 
Department, and River Bluff Nursing Home staff have reviewed the bid results and agreed 
the award should be with Laboratory Corporation of America Holding (LabCorp).  Please see 
Bid Tab for more details. 
 

Recommendation:  
Therefore, it is recommended that Laboratory Corporation of America Holding (LabCorp) be 
awarded a multi-year contract for bid 18B-2143. 
 
 



 

  

 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Gary Jury 
Submitted by:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
   

2018 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING BID FOR LABORATORY SERVICES 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Article VI, Section 2-341, that all purchases for and contracts for supplies, materials, equipment, and 
contractual services, the value of which is estimated to exceed $12,000.00 shall be based on 
competitive proposals by the County Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County is in need of a new five (5) year contract for Laboratory Services for 
the Winnebago County Health Department and River Bluff Nursing Home; and 

 

WHEREAS, competitive bids were received by the County Purchasing Department on April 
27, 2018 for the following:  

LABORATORY SERVICES   18B-2143 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the bids received for the aforementioned item(s) and 
recommends awarding the bid as follows: 
 

LABORATORY CORPORATION OF AMERICA HOLDINGS (LABCORP) 
11751 INTERCHANGE DRIVE 
LOUISVILLE, KY 40229 
SEE ATTACHED TAB 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee has determined that the funding for 
the aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 

 

43150-60420 
72500-43150 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Operations & Administrative Committee of the County 
Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Laboratory Services bid and 
recommends awarding a two (2) year contract, with three (3) one (1) year optional renewal periods 
with LABORATORY CORPORATION OF AMERICA HOLDINGS (LABCORP), 11751 INTERCHANGE DRIVE, 
LOUISVILLE, KY 40229. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 



 

  

 

certified copies of this Resolution to the Public Health Administrator, Nursing Home Administrator, 
Director of Purchasing, Finance Director and County Auditor.  

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



 

  

 

 
 
 

BID TAB 18B-2143 
LABORATORY SERVICES 

Bid Opening: 4/27/18 
 
 
 

VENDORS QUEST LABCORP 

CPT WCHD Description Each Test Each Test 

87491 Chylmd trach DNA amp probe 
 

$10.00 
 

$10.00 
 

 80076 Hepatic Function Panel 
 

$1.64 
 

$4.18 

80061 Lipid Profile 
 

$2.25 
 

$4.25 

87591 N.gonorrhoeae DNA amp prob 
 

$10.00 
 

$10.00 

86703 
HIV Antibodies, HIV-1, HIV-2 Elisa 

with Reflex to Western Blot 
 

$15.00 
 

$8.00 

86689  HIV Confirmatory – Western Blot 
$ Part of CPT 

86703 
 

 

 
$42.00 

88142 Pap Smear (thin prep) 
 

$18.75 
 

$14.00 

87255 
Herpes Simplex Virus Culture with 

Reflex Typing 
 

$15.00 
 

$14.50 

86481 T-Spot 
 

$3.00 
 

N/A 

87340 HBsAg (Hep B Antigen) 
 

$5.00 
 

$5.75 
87491/8759

1 
Chlamydia /N Gonorrhoeae DNA 

probe 
 

$20.00 
 

$20.00 

87177 Ova and Parasite-Stool 
 

$20.00 
 

$6.65 

85025 CBC-automated 
 

$3.45 
 

$4.10 

83655 Lead – Venous 
 

$2.00 
 

$8.50 

83655 Lead – Capillary 
 

$2.00 
 

$8.50 

81003 Urinalysis 
 

$1.84 
 

$3.25 

86787 Varicella TIter 
 

$6.50 
 

$6.00 

82253 
Comprehensive Metabolic Panel 

(14) 
 

$2.14 
 

$4.52 



 

  

 

86592 
RPR with positive reflex to FTA-

ABS 
 

$3.50 
 

$4.40 

86780 FTA-ABS 
 

$9.00 
 

$5.50 
VENDORS QUEST LABCORP 

CPT RBNH Description   

82570 
CREATININE, OTHER SOURCE $6.00 $2.25 

87077 
AEROBIC ISOLATE, DEFINITIVE ID, 

EACH 
 

$6.00 
 

$8.00 

84156 
ASSAY OF PROTEIN-URINE  

$6.50 
 

2.25 

84466 
ASSAY OF TRANSFERRIN  

$12.00 
 

$3.50 

84520 
ASSAY OF UREA NITROGEN  

$12.00 
 

$3.00 

80202 
ASSAY OF VANCOMYCIN  

$10.00 
 

$7.50 

82506 
ASSAY OF VITAMIN D  

$17.00 
 

$9.00 

84443 
ASSAY THYROID STIM HORMONE  

$1.25 
 

$4.25 

80048 
BASIC METABOLIC PANEL W 

TOTAL CALCIUM 
 

$1.71 
 

$4.28 

82248 
BILIRUBIN DIRECT  

$1.25 
 

$3.00 

85014 
BLOOD COUNT; HEMATOCRIT  

$3.25 
 

$1.50 

85018 
BLOOD COUNT; HEMOGLOBIN  

$3.25 
 

$1.50 

85027 
BLOOD COUNT; HEMOGRAM & 

PLATELET COUNT 
 

$3.45 
 

$4.05 

85025 
CBC - BLOOD COUNT; 
DIFFERENTIAL WBC 

 
$3.50 

 
$4.10 

80053 
COMPREHENSIVE METABOLIC 

PANEL 
 

$2.14 
 

$4.52 

86140 
C-REACTIVE PROTEIN  

$8.00 
 

$3.00 

82565 
CREATININE; BLOOD  

$1.25 
 

$3.00 

87088 
CULT, W/ISOL & EA PRESUMP ID, 

UR 
No Bid  

$4.50 

87086 
CULTURE; QUANT COLONY 

COUNT, URINE 
 

$6.00 
 

$4.50 

82607 
CYANOCOBALAMIN (VITAMIN B-

12) 
 

$9.00 
 

$4.75 

80162 
DIGOXIN  

$10.00 
 

$10.00 
82728 FERRITIN $9.00 $4.75 



 

  

 

82746 
FOLIC ACID; SERUM  

$10.00 
 

$4.75 

83036 
 

HEMOGLOBIN; GLYCOSYLATED 
 

$5.00 
 

$4.75 
 
VENDORS 

 
QUEST 

 
LABCORP 

CPT RBNH Description   

87804 
INFECT AGENT DETEC OBSERV 

INFLUENZA 
No Bid $20.50 

83540 
IRON  

$4.00 
 

$3.00 

80061 
LIPID PANEL  

$3.25 
 

 
$4.25 

83735 
MAGNESIUM  

$2.50 
 

$2.25 

83970 
PARATHORMONE  

$23.00 
 

$6.25 

84100 
PHOSPHORUS  

$1.25 
 

$3.00 

84155 
PROTEIN, TOTAL  

$1.25 
 

$3.00 

85610 
PROTHROMBIN TIME  

$5.00 
 

$4.50 

85045 
RETICULOCYTE COUNT, 

AUTOMATED 
 

$8.50 
 

$4.25 

85652 
SEDIMENTATION RATE, 
ERYTHROCYTE; AUTO 

 
$5.00 

 
$4.25 

87186 
SUSCEPTIBILITY STUDIES, 

MICRODILUTION 
 

No bid 
 

$6.00 

85730 
THROMBOPLASTIN TIME, PARTIAL 

(PTT) 
 

$6.00 
 

$4.50 

99001 
TRAVEL ALLOWANCE-1 ______ 

 
_______ 

99001 
TRAVEL ALLOWANCE-1 ______ 

 
______ 

81002 
URINALYSIS, AUTO W/O SCOPE  

$1.84 
 

$3.00 

81001 
URINALYSIS, AUTO W/SCOPE  

$4.00 
 

$3.25 

83036 
 

HEMOGLOBIN (HB) A1c 
 

$5.00 
 

$4.75 
 
 
 

 
 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by: Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2018 CR_______ 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT TO  
HEALTH AND WELLNESS SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH  

OSF SAINT FRANCIS, INC. 
 

 
WHEREAS, there is in place a Health and Wellness Services Agreement 

(“Agreement”) between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and OSF Saint Francis, Inc.; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties wish to agree to a amendment to the Agreement 

extending the term of the Agreement until July 1, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the terms of the amendment are substantially the same as those 

attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois that it approves the Amendment to the Health and Wellness 
Services Agreement with OSF Saint Francis, Inc. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 

authorized to prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to Karen Brown, 
vice-president of operations, OSF Healthcare in Rockford. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
Operations and Administrative Committee 

 
 (AGREE)       (DISAGREE) 

 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 

ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
TIANA J. MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



71212270v1 0957081 

ASSIGNMENT/ASSUMPTION AND AMENDMENT AGREEMENT 
AMONG 

OSF SAINT FRANCIS, INC., 
OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM,  

OSF HEALTHCARE SAINT ANTHONY MEDICAL CENTER 
AND 

THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
 

THIS ASSIGNMENT/ASSUMPTION AND AMENDMENT AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) is made as of the last date written below, to be effective as of July 31, 2018 (the 
"Effective Date"), by and among OSF Saint Francis, Inc., an Illinois corporation (“Assignor”), 
OSF Healthcare System, d/b/a OSF Healthcare Saint Anthony Medical Center, an Illinois not for 
profit corporation (“Assignee”), and The County of Winnebago, an Illinois body politic 
("County"). 

A.  WHEREAS, Assignor has decided to discontinue services, and OSF Healthcare 
System, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation and affiliate of Assignee, has agreed to provide 
professional consulting services to improve the well-being of the employees and employees’ 
dependents who participate in their self-insured health and welfare benefits plan following the 
discontinuance of services by Assignor; and 

B.  WHEREAS, Assignor desires to assign to Assignee the Health and Wellness Services 
Agreement between Assignor and County dated April 1, 2013 ("Health and Wellness Services 
Agreement"); and 

C.  County desires to acknowledge its consent to the assignment of the Health and Wellness 
Services Agreement to Assignee; and 

D.  WHEREAS, certain amendments to the terms of the Health and Wellness Services 
Agreement are necessary in order to Assignee to assume the Health and Wellness Services 
Agreement; and 

E.  WHEREAS, Assignee and County desire to amend the terms of the Health and Wellness 
Services Agreement in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein set 
forth, and of other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Assignment.  Effective as of the Effective Date, Assignor assigns to Assignee all 
its right, title and interest in and to the Health and Wellness Services Agreement, a copy of which 
is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and Assignee accepts such assignment and agrees to be bound by 
the terms of the Health and Wellness Services Agreement, as amended by this Agreement, on and 
after the Effective Date. 

2. County Acknowledgement of Assignment.  County hereby agrees to and 
acknowledges the assignment of the Health and Wellness Services Agreement to Assignee, subject 
to those amendments to the Health and Wellness Services Agreement set forth in this Agreement. 



2 
71212270v1 0957081 

3. Amendments to Health and Wellness Services Agreement.  Assignee and County 
hereby agree to the following amendments to the Health and Wellness Services Agreement, to be 
effective as of the Effective Date: 

a. The Term of this Agreement is hereby extended from July 31, 2018 until July 1, 
2019, at which time it shall expire unless further amended by mutual agreement of 
the parties.  

b. County acknowledges that they are advised by Assignee that property of Assignee 
used under this Agreement may have been financed or could in the future be 
financed with tax-exempt bonds issued for the benefit of Assignee.  Accordingly, 
it is the intent of County and Assignee that this Agreement be interpreted in a 
manner that meets an exception from “private business use” under Section 141 of 
the Internal Revenue Code, and specifically meets a safe harbor from private 
business use under Internal Revenue Service Rev. Proc. 2017-13.   

County agrees that it is not entitled to and will not take any tax position that is 
inconsistent with being a service provider to Assignee with respect to the property 
provided by Assignee that is managed or otherwise used under this Agreement.  For 
example, County agrees not to claim any depreciation or amortization deduction, 
investment tax credit, or deduction for any payment as rent with respect to the 
property provided by Assignee that is managed or otherwise used under this 
Agreement.  County specifically acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is 
not a lease, and provides for no rights of any kind to County as a lessee. 
 

4. No Other Changes.  All other terms and conditions of the Health and Wellness 
Services Agreement shall remain unaffected except as set forth in this Agreement. 

5. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to 
the benefit of the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. 

6. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of the State of Illinois. 

7. Counterparts; Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts which, when taken together, shall constitute one (1) original.  The parties further 
agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or in Portable Document Format (pdf) may be 
considered an original for all purposes, including, without limitation, the execution of this 
Agreement and enforcement of this Agreement. 

 

  



3 
71212270v1 0957081 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Assignment/Assumption and 
Amendment Agreement as of the date first written. 

  

 
By:_____________________________   By:                                             ____ 
Its:_____________________________                                 Its:___________________________
                               

ASSIGNOR: 

OSF Saint Francis, Inc., an Illinois corporation 
 

ASSIGNEE: 

OSF Healthcare System, d/b/a OSF Healthcare 
Saint Anthony Medical Center, an Illinois not-
for-profit corporation 

By: _________________________________ 

Its:__________________________________ 

Dated:_______________________________ 

By: _________________________________ 

Its:__________________________________ 

Dated:_______________________________ 

 

COUNTY: 

The County of Winnebago, an Illinois body 
politic 

 

By: _________________________________ 

Its:__________________________________ 

Dated:_______________________________ 

 

HW/sp 4 23 18 

 

 

































Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2018 CR 
  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 62-14 OF CHAPTER 62 
OF THE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 62 of the County Code of Ordinances, Article I sets forth various 

criteria for Personnel; 
 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to amend Sections of Chapter 62, of the County Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 62, Article I of the County Code of Ordinances be amended as 
follows: 
 
Sec. 62-14. - Discrimination/harassment policy.  
 
(a) Policy. The County strives to maintain a workplace that fosters mutual employee respect and 

promotes a harmonious, productive working environment. Winnebago County is committed to 
maintaining a work environment that is free of discrimination and harassment.  
 

1) In keeping with that commitment, the County prohibits discrimination and/or harassment that is 
based on sex, race, religion, gender identity, color, citizenship status, pregnancy, ancestry, order 
of protection status, arrest record, national origin, age, sexual orientation, physical or mental 
disability, military status, unfavorable discharge from military service, marital status, genetic 
information, or any other class protected by federal or state law, now or in the future. Winnebago 
County further prohibits discrimination and/or harassment that is perceived as creating a hostile 
work environment. Discrimination and/or harassment in any form constitute misconduct that 
undermines the integrity of the workplace.  
 

2) Prohibition on Sexual Harassment.  
It is unlawful to harass a person because of that person’s sex. The courts have determined that 
sexual harassment is a form of discrimination under Title VII of the U.S. Civil Rights Act of 1964, 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

as amended in 1991. All persons have a right to work in an environment free from sexual 
harassment. Sexual harassment is unacceptable misconduct which affects individuals of all 
genders and sexual orientations. It is a policy of Winnebago County to prohibit harassment of any 
person by any County official, County agent, county employee or County agency or office on the 
basis of sex or gender. All County officials, agents, employees and agencies or offices are 
prohibited from sexually harassing any person, regardless of any employment relationship or lack 
thereof.  

 
(b) Scope. This policy applies to every employee, elected official, contractor, volunteer, and intern 

throughout the County and all individuals who may have contact with any employee of this 
organization as a result of County business operations.  
 

(c) Definitions. As used in this document, the following definitions shall apply:  
1) Complaint. A formal or informal allegation of discrimination or harassment by an employee, 

including the filing of a grievance.  
2) This policy adopts and incorporates the definition of sexual harassment as stated in the Illinois 

Human Rights Act, which currently defines sexual harassment as:  Any unwelcome sexual 
advances or requests for sexual favors, or any conduct of a sexual nature when:  
a. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term of condition of an 

individual’s employment, 
b. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for 

employment decisions affecting such individual, or 
c. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual’s work 

performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment. 
3) Harassment. Unwelcome conduct based on a protected class which is unlawful where 1) 

enduring the offensive conduct becomes a condition of continued employment, or 2) the conduct 
is severe or pervasive enough to create a work environment that a reasonable person would 
consider intimidating, hostile, or abusive.  

4) Discrimination. Treating a person or group of people differently because of their membership in a 
protected class.  

 
(d) General provisions.  

1) Sexual harassment is a form of misconduct which undermines the integrity of the employer - 
employee relationship and is prohibited at all times.  

2) Conduct which may constitute sexual harassment includes: 
a. Verbal:  sexual innuendos, suggestive comments, insults, humor, and jokes about sex, 

anatomy or gender-specific traits, sexual propositions, threats, repeated requests for dates, 
or statements about other employees, even outside of their presence, of a sexual nature;  

b. Non-verbal:  suggestive or insulting sounds (whistling), leering, obscene gestures, sexually 
suggestive bodily gestures, “catcalls”, “smacking” or “kissing” noises;  

c. Visual: posters, signs, pin-ups or slogans of a sexual nature, viewing pornographic material 
or websites;  

d. Physical: touching, unwelcome hugging or kissing, pinching, brushing the body, any coerced  
sexual act or actual assault;  



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

e. Textual/Electronic: “sexting” (electronically sending messages with sexual content, including 
pictures and video), the use of sexually explicit language, harassment, cyber stalking and 
threats via all forms of electronic communication (e-mail, text/picture/video messages, 
intranet/on-line postings, blogs, instant messages and social network websites like Facebook 
and Twitter.) 

3) The most severe and overt forms of sexual harassment are easier to determine. On the other end 
of the spectrum, some sexual harassment is more subtle and depends, to some extent, on 
individual perception and interpretation. The courts will assess sexual harassment by a standard 
of what would offend a “reasonable person.” 

4) Non-sexual conduct can also constitute a violation of applicable law when such conduct is 
directed at a person because of his or her gender.  

5) Harassment on the basis of any protected characteristic is strictly prohibited. Any verbal or 
physical conduct that denigrates or shows hostility toward an employee because of the 
employee's race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap/disability, ancestry, 
pregnancy, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, citizenship status, order of 
protection status, arrest record, unfavorable discharge from the military, mental or physical 
disability unrelated to a person's ability to perform the essential functions of the job, genetic 
information, or any other characteristic protected by federal or state law. Harassing conduct 
includes, but is not limited to:  
a. Epithets, slurs or negative stereotyping;  
b. Threatening, intimidating or hostile acts;  
c. Denigrating jokes, and;  
d. Display or circulation in the workplace of written or graphic material that denigrates or shows 

hostility or aversion toward an individual or group (including through e-mail, voice mail, or 
similar systems). There shall be no distinction between someone who originates, sends, or 
forwards such material and one who receives such material and fails to take any action 
regarding its receipt.  

6) Each employee shall assist in the prevention of harassment through the following acts:  
a. Refraining from participation in or encouragement of actions that are or could be perceived as 

harassment;  
b. Reporting acts of harassment to a supervisor;  
c. Encouraging any employee who confides that he or she is being harassed to report these 

acts to a supervisor.  
7) This policy is not intended to preclude any employee from filing a complaint or grievance with an 

appropriate outside agency.  
 
(e) Prohibited activities.  

1) Conduct prohibited by this policy is unacceptable in the workplace and in any work-related setting 
outside the workplace, such as during business trips, professional conferences, business 
meetings and business-related social events. Any employee engaging in practices or conduct 
constituting sexual harassment, discrimination or harassment of any kind shall be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

2) Winnebago County prohibits retaliation against any individuals who make good faith reports of 
discrimination or harassment, participate in an investigation of such reports, or file a charge of 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

discrimination or harassment. Retaliation against an individual for reporting harassment or 
discrimination, or participating in an investigation of a claim of harassment or discrimination, or for 
filing a charge of discrimination or harassment is a serious violation of this policy and, like 
harassment or discrimination itself, will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination.  

 
(f) Employee's responsibilities.  

1) If an employee is the subject of or witnesses harassment or discrimination of any kind, he or she 
should deal with the incident(s) as directly and firmly as possible by clearly communicating his or 
her position to the offending person, and to his or her immediate supervisor or dept. head or the 
Winnebago County Human Resources Dept. In cases which involve complaints against elected 
officials covered under this policy, an employee may also inform the State's Attorney's office. It is 
not necessary that the harassment be directed at the employee in order to make a complaint 
through the procedures set forth below.  

2) The employee and the individual to whom the harassment is reported should document or record 
the facts surrounding each incident (what was said or done, by whom, the date, time and place, 
and any witnesses to the incident.)  
a. Written records such as letters, notes, memos, e-mails, and telephone messages can 

strengthen documentation.  
3) If there is harassing or discriminatory behavior in the workplace, the employee may directly and 

clearly express their objection to the offending person(s) regardless of whether the behavior is 
directed at them.  
a. If the employee is being harassed, he or she should clearly state that the conduct is 

unwelcome and the offending behavior must stop.  
b. However, the employee is not required to directly confront the person who is the source of his 

or her report, question, or complaint before notifying any of the individuals listed in Section 1 
above.  

c. The initial communication may be oral, but documentation of the notice should be made. If 
subsequent communication is needed, it should be put in writing.  

4) Employees who have witnessed or experienced conduct they believe is contrary to this policy are 
encouraged to use this reporting procedure. An employee's failure to follow this procedure could 
affect his or her right to pursue legal action.  

5) Failure by an employee to report known harassment may be grounds for discipline, up to and 
including termination.  

 
(g) Supervisor's responsibilities.  

1) Each supervisor shall be responsible for addressing and preventing acts of harassment. This 
responsibility includes:  
a. Monitoring the work environment on a daily basis for signs that harassment may be 

occurring.  
b. Counseling all employees on the types of behavior prohibited and the organization's 

procedure for reporting and resolving complaints of harassment.  



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

c. Stopping any observed acts that may be considered harassment and taking immediate and 
appropriate corrective action, whether or not the involved employees are within his or her line 
of supervision.  

d. Taking immediate action to limit the work contact between two employees when there is a 
pending investigation of harassment involving those employees.  

2) Every supervisor has the responsibility to assist any employee who comes to that supervisor with 
a complaint of harassment in documenting and filing a complaint as outlined in this policy.  

3) Any supervisor who becomes aware of any possible sexual or other unlawful harassment of or 
discrimination against any employee must immediately advise his or her dept. head, the Human 
Resources Dept., or the states attorney's office, who will timely initiate an investigation into the 
conduct.  

 
(h) Complaint procedures.  

1) Winnebago County strongly urges the reporting of all incidents of discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation, regardless of the offender's identity or position. While no fixed reporting period has 
been established, the prompt reporting of complaints or concerns allows for rapid and 
constructive action.  

2) An employee who believes that he or she is being harassed or discriminated against should 
promptly report the offending behavior to a supervisor or dept. head so that steps may be taken 
to protect the employee from further harassment or discrimination and appropriate investigative 
and disciplinary measures may be initiated. If reporting to a supervisor or dept. head is not 
practical, if the employee feels uncomfortable doing so, or if the supervisor and/or dept. head is 
the source of the problem, condones the problem, or ignores the problem, the report should be 
made directly to the Winnebago County Human Resources Dept. or the State's Attorney's office.  

3) The availability of this reporting procedure does not preclude employees who believe they are 
being subjected to harassment or discriminatory conduct from promptly advising the offender that 
his or her behavior is unwelcome and requesting that it be discontinued. However, employees are 
not required to communicate directly with the offender.  

4) The supervisor or other person taking the complaint shall interview the complaining employee 
and document, in writing, the details and nature of the incident(s). The documentation shall 
contain the following, at a minimum:  
a. Statement of the facts upon which the complaint is based;  
b. Person(s) performing, participating in, or witnessing the harassment;  
c. Description of specific wrongful act(s) and harm done;  
d. Date(s) on which it occurred;  
e. Any particular remedy or adjustment sought;  
f. The time and date that the complaint was brought to the attention of the supervisor or other 

person taking the complaint, along with any action taken.  
5) The person taking the complaint shall promptly forward the documentation to the human 

resources dept. or State's Attorney's office for review.  
 

(i) Procedure for Reporting an Allegation of Sexual Harassment 
An employee who either observes sexual harassment or believes herself/himself to be the object of 
sexual harassment should deal with the incident(s) as directly and firmly as possible by clearly 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

communicating her/his position to the offending employee, and her/his immediate supervisor. It is 
not necessary for sexual harassment to be directed at the person making the report. 

 
1) Any employee may report conduct which is believed to be sexual harassment, including the 

following: 
a. Electronic/Direct Communication. If there is sexual harassing behavior in the workplace, the 

harassed employee should directly and clearly express her/his objection that the conduct is 
unwelcome and request that the offending behavior stop. The initial message may be verbal. 
If subsequent messages are needed, they should be put in writing in a note or a memo. 

b. Contact with Supervisory Personnel. At the same time direct communication is undertaken, or 
in the event the employee feels threatened or intimidated by the situation, the problem must 
be promptly reported to the immediate supervisor of the person making the report, a 
department head, a director of human resources, the County Administrator, or the County 
Board Chairman. 

c. The employee experiencing what he or she believes to be sexual harassment must not 
assume that the employer is aware of the conduct. If there are no witnesses and the victim 
fails to notify a supervisor or other responsible officer, the county will not be presumed to 
have knowledge of the harassment. 

d. Resolution Outside County. The purpose of this policy is to establish prompt, thorough and 
effective procedures for responding to every report and incident so that problems can be 
identified and remedied by the County. However, all County employees have the right to 
contact the Illinois Department of Human Rights (IDHR) or the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission (EEOC) for information regarding filing a formal complaint with 
those entities. An IDHR complaint must be filed within 180 days of the alleged incident(s) 
unless it is a continuing offense. A complaint with the EEOC must be filed within 300 days.  

2) Documentation of any incident may be submitted with any report (what was said or done, the 
date, the time and the place), including, but not limited to, written records such as letters, notes, 
memos and telephone messages.  

3) All allegations, including anonymous reports, will be accepted and investigated regardless of how 
the matter comes to the attention of the c. However, because of the serious implications of sexual 
harassment charges and the difficulties associated with their investigation and the questions of 
credibility involved, the claimant’s willing cooperation is a vital component of an effective inquiry 
and an appropriate outcome. 

 
(j) Prohibition on Retaliation for Reporting Sexual Harassment Allegations 

1) No County official, County agency, County employee or County agency or office shall take any 
retaliatory action against any County employee due to a County employee’s: 
a. Disclosure or threatened disclosure of any violation of this policy, 
b. The provision of information related to or testimony before any public body conducting an 

investigation, hearing or inquiry into any violation of this policy, or 
c. Assistance or participation in a proceeding to enforce the provisions of this policy. 

2) For the purposes of this policy, retaliatory action means the reprimand, discharge, suspension, 
demotion, denial of promotion or transfer, or change in the terms or conditions of employment of 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

any County employee that is taken in retaliation for a County employee’s involvement in protected 
activity pursuant to this policy. 

3) No individual making a report will be retaliated against even if a report made in good faith is not 
substantiated. In addition, any witness will be protected from retaliation. 

 
4) Similar to the prohibition against retaliation contained herein, the State Officials and Employees 

Ethics Act (5 ILCS 430/15-10) provides whistleblower protection from retaliatory action such as 
reprimand, discharge, suspension, demotion, or denial of promotion or transfer that occurs in 
retaliation for an employee who does any of the following:  
a. Discloses or threatens to disclose to a supervisor or to a public body an activity, policy, or 

practice of any officer, member, State agency, or other State employee that the State 
employee reasonably believes is in violation of a law, rule, or regulation, 

b. Provides information to or testifies before any public body conducting an investigation, 
hearing, or inquiry into any violation of a law, rule, or regulation by any officer, member, State 
agency or other State employee, or 

c. Assists or participates in a proceeding to enforce the provisions of the State Officials and 
Employees Ethics Act. 

 
5) Pursuant to the Whistleblower Act (740 ILCS 174/15(a)), an employer may not retaliate against 

an employee who discloses information in a court, an administrative hearing, or before a 
legislative commission or committee, or in any other proceeding, where the employee has 
reasonable cause to believe that the information discloses a violation of a State or federal law, 
rule, or regulation. In addition, an employer may not retaliate against an employee for disclosing 
information to a government or law enforcement agency, where the employee has reasonable 
cause to believe that the information discloses a violation of a State or federal law, rule, or 
regulation. (740 ILCS 174/15(b)). 
 

6) According to the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/6-101), it is a civil rights violation for a 
person, or for two or more people to conspire, to retaliate against a person because he/she has 
opposed that which he/she reasonably and in good faith believes to be sexual harassment in 
employment, because he/she has made a charge, filed a complaint, testified, assisted, or 
participated in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under the Illinois Human Rights Act. 
 

7) An employee who is suddenly transferred to a lower paying job or passed over for a promotion 
after filing a complaint with IDHR or EEOC, may file a retaliation charge – due within 180 days 
(IDHR) or 300 days (EEOC) of the alleged retaliation. 

 
(k) Investigation of complaint.  

1) The Winnebago County Human Resources Dept., or, in some instances, the State's Attorney's 
office, is responsible for the prompt coordination of the investigation into any complaint alleging 
harassment or discrimination.  
a. At no time will employees involved in the alleged harassment or discrimination conduct the 

investigation.  



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

b. The investigating department will make every reasonable effort to conduct the investigation in 
a responsible and confidential manner; however, it is impossible to guarantee absolute 
confidentiality.  

c. The investigating department reserves the right to use an outside agency to investigate 
claims of harassment or discrimination.  

d. As with any investigation of workplace misconduct, all employees must fully cooperate and 
provide truthful information or risk disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

2) If the complaint contains evidence of possible criminal activity, the investigator shall notify and 
confer with the offices of the State's Attorney and the Sheriff.  

3) Where appropriate, the investigation shall include an inquiry into whether other employees are 
being harassed or discriminated against by the individual and whether other personnel 
participated in or encouraged the harassment or discrimination.  

4) A report shall be completed with a conclusion that the allegation(s) are founded or unfounded.  
5) If the allegation(s) are founded, the report shall include any recommended remedies or 

adjustments, including training, referral to counseling or EAP, and/or disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination. If it is determined disciplinary action is warranted, the appropriate 
procedure shall be followed.  

6) The complainant shall be informed, in writing, of the outcome of the investigation.  
 
(l) Consequences of a Violation of the Prohibition on Sexual Harassment 
In addition to any and all other discipline that may be applicable pursuant to County policies, employment 
agreements, procedures, employee handbooks and/or collective bargaining agreement, any person who 
violates this policy or the Prohibition on Sexual Harassment contained in 5 ILCS 430/5-65, may be 
subject to a fine of up to $5,000 per offense, applicable discipline or discharge by the County and any 
applicable fines and penalties established pursuant to local ordinance, state law or federal law. Each 
violation may constitute a separate offense. Any discipline imposed by the County shall be separate and 
distinct from any penalty imposed by an ethics commission and any fines or penalties imposed by a court 
of law or a State or federal agency. 
 
(m) False and frivolous complaints.  

1) Given the possibility of serious consequences for an individual accused of sexual or other forms 
of harassment or discrimination, employees who make complaints in bad faith or otherwise file 
false or frivolous charges may be guilty of severe gross misconduct and may be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

2) A false report is a report of sexual harassment made by an accuser using the sexual harassment 
report to accomplish some end other than stopping sexual harassment or retaliation for reporting 
sexual harassment. A false report is not a report made in good faith which cannot be proven. 
Given the seriousness of the consequences for the accused, a false or frivolous report is a severe 
offense that can itself result in disciplinary action. Any person who intentionally makes a false 
report alleging a violation of any provision of this policy shall be subject to discipline or discharge 
pursuant to applicable County policies, employment agreements, procedures, employee 
handbooks and/or collective bargaining agreements. 

3) In addition, any person who intentionally makes a false report alleging a violation of any provision 
of the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act to an ethics commission, an inspector general, 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

the State Police, a State’s Attorney, the Attorney General, or any other law enforcement official is 
guilty of a Class A misdemeanor. An ethics commission may levy an administrative fine of up to 
$5,000 against any person who intentionally makes a false, frivolous or bad faith allegation. 

 
(n) Discipline/sanctions. Disciplinary action will be taken against any employee found to have engaged 

in discrimination, sexual harassment or other forms of harassment prohibited under this policy.  
a. Violations of the discrimination/harassment policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and 

including termination of employment. In some instances, a violation of this policy may also 
subject the employee to civil and/or criminal penalties, fines and other sanctions.  

b. Where a hostile work environment has been found to exist, the County will take all 
reasonable steps to eliminate the conduct creating such an environment.  

  
(o) Administrative contacts.  

While Winnebago County will strive to resolve any complaints of harassment or discrimination within 
the organization, the County acknowledges an employee's right to contact federal and state entities 
for purposes of discussing and, potentially, filing a formal complaint. Contact information for those 
state and federal agencies is set forth below:  

 
Illinois Department of Human Rights  
(312) 814-6200 Chicago  
(866) 740-3953 TTY Chicago  
(217) 785-5100 Springfield  
(866) 740-3953 TTY Springfield  
 
Illinois Human Rights Commission  
(312) 814-6269 Chicago  
(312) 814-4760 TTY Chicago  
(217) 785-4350 Springfield  
(217) 557-1500 TTY Springfield  
 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission  
(800) 669-4000 Chicago  
(312) 869-8001 TTY Chicago  
(844) 234-5122 ASL video  

 
(Ord. No. 88-CO-34, § II(M), 6-23-88; Ord. No. 90-CO-13, 3-22-90; Ord. No. 2012-CO-003, 2-9-12; Ord. 
No. 2017-CO-057, 5-25-17)  
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance Amendment shall be effective 
immediately upon passage. 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Winnebago County Clerk shall place a certified copy 
of this Ordinance Amendment upon its adoption in the records of office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County 

of Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by:  Gary Jury, Chairman 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

June 14, 2018 
 

ORDINANCE 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE II, 

DIVISION 2 OF THE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
(PRESENTATION OF BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE FINANCE 

COMMITTEE) 
 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 2 of the County Code of Ordinances, Article II, Division 2, Sec. 2-

52, sets forth various criteria for Presentation of budget amendments to the finance committee 
and; 
 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to amend Sections of Chapter 2, of the County Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article II, Sec. 2-52 of the County Code of Ordinances be 
amended as follows: 

Sec. 2-52. - Presentation of budget amendments to the finance committee. 

(a) Budget amendments shall be obtained before the procurement/employment processed is 
commenced. 
 
(b) The process for presenting such a budget amendment shall be as follows: 
 

(1) No later than ten business days prior to the meeting of the finance committee at 
which the budget amendment shall be considered, the department head/elected official 
shall submit the proposed budget amendment to the chief financial and budget officer 
(CFO). The CFO shall review the requested budget amendment and determine the 
financial impact of the budget amendment for accuracy to identify the source of 
funding for presentation to the finance committee. 



(2) The CFO will then meet with the requesting department head/elected official to 
discuss potential revisions to the budget amendment (if applicable) and associated 
information prior to meeting with the finance committee. 
 

(c) Line item transfers between object class level, which is the budgetary level of control over 
expenditures, may be approved by the county administrator and chief financial officer, 
provided that the total amount appropriated by the County Board for the respective 
department (org code).  
  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance Amendment shall be effective 
immediately upon passage. 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Winnebago County Clerk shall place a certified copy 
of this Ordinance Amendment upon its adoption in the records of office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
  



 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by:  Gary Jury, Chairman 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

June 14, 2018 
ORDINANCE 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

 
2018 CR 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE CREATING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE III, 

DIVISION 5 (OPERATIONS OFFICER) 
OF THE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to create Division 5, Sections 2-149 through 2-152 of 

Chapter 2, Article III of the County Code of Ordinances. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article III, Division 5 of the County Code of Ordinances be 
created as follows: 

Sec. 2-149 - Establishment. 

The office of operations officer is hereby established. 

Sec. 2-150 - Qualifications. 

The operations officer shall have, at a minimum, a bachelor's degree from an accredited college 
or university in public administration, public policy, business administration, political science or 
related field and five years of progressive experience in a leadership role, with public sector 
experience preferred. An operations officer who meets the above criteria may be exempted 
from the residency requirement set forth in section 62-5 of the County Code of Ordinances. 

Sec. 2-151 - Appointment/dismissal. 

The operations officer shall be recommended, and appointed or dismissed, by the county 
administrator with the approval of the county board chairman. 

Sec. 2-152- Duties. 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH62PE_ARTIINGE_S62-5RE


Under the supervision of the County Administrator, the operations officer will perform the 
following duties: 

(a) Provide assistance to the County Administrator with a variety of administrative, fiscal, 
policy, and operational matters; oversees special projects; performs research; prepares 
reports and presents to the County Board as needed; compiles and analyzes 
administrative and fiscal data; monitors programs and daily department operations as 
assigned by the County Administrator. 

(b) Responsible for facilities management and planning for the entire county and oversees 
the Building Maintenance department; 

(c) Advises the County Administrator on a variety of County issues as assigned; makes 
recommendations regarding policy changes; researches issues, complaints, and problems; 
provides recommendations regarding solutions and courses of action; implements 
determined course of action. 

(d) Provides County Administrator and department heads with technical information, status 
reports, and policy recommendations related to programs and operations. 

(e) Oversees county departments as assigned by the County Administrator. 
(f) Provides planning, coordination, implementation and administration of assigned 

programs and special projects; analyzes, researches and monitors performance; 
implements improvements and prepares reports of findings. 

(g) Assists the County Administrator with developing policy and strategy related to the 
County's risk management program and self-funded insurance programs; assists in the 
development and implementation of policies and guidelines to protect the County and its 
property from loss, damage, liability, and other risks; investigates claims and directly 
participates in the resolution of claims against the County. 

(h) Communicates and interfaces with a variety of groups and individuals including the 
department heads, County employees, service providers, state agencies, regulatory 
agencies, media and the general public to coordinate work activities, resolve problems, 
and exchange information; represents County Administration at department, committee, 
external agency or service partner meetings as assigned. 

(i) Support efforts to continually improve business practices and processes to efficiently 
utilize County-wide resources; articulate changes in organizational and business priorities 
to staff in ways which encourages action and support. 

(j) Assists the County Administrator with the development, implementation and monitoring 
of County strategic goals, objectives, and priorities. 

(k) Serves as the Meaningful Access Coordinator for the County, designated to promote 
equal access and full participation under Title VI Civil Rights and Title II Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

(l) Assists the County Administrator in the development, management and implementation 
of the capital improvement plan.   

(m) May perform functions of the County Administrator in absence of same. 
(n) Other duties as assigned by the County Administrator. 

 



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon passage. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Winnebago County Clerk shall place a 
certified copy of this Ordinance Amendment upon its adoption in the records of office of the 
Winnebago County Clerk. 

 
 Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

June 14, 2018 
 
 

ORDINANCE 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE CREATING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE III, 

DIVISION 6 (CHIEF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES OFFICER) 
OF THE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to create Division 6, Sections 2-153 through 2-155 of 

Chapter 2, Article III of the County Code of Ordinances. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article III, Division 5 of the County Code of Ordinances be 
created as follows: 

Sec. 2-153 - Establishment. 

The office of chief strategic initiatives officer is hereby established. 

Sec. 2-154 - Qualifications. 

The chief strategic initiatives officer shall have, at a minimum, a bachelor's degree from an 
accredited college or university in public administration, business administration, or related field 
and ten years of progressive experience in a leadership role, with public sector experience 
preferred. A chief strategic initiatives officer who meets the above criteria may be exempted 
from the residency requirement set forth in section 62-5 of the County Code of Ordinances. 

Sec. 2-155 - Appointment/dismissal and duties. 

The chief strategic initiatives officer shall be recommended, and appointed or dismissed, by the 
county administrator with the approval of the county board chairman. 

Under the supervision of the County Administrator, the chief strategic initiatives officer 
will perform the following duties: 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH62PE_ARTIINGE_S62-5RE


Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

June 14, 2018 
 
 

(a) Coordinates the Board Office strategic planning and reporting process. 
(1) Supports the connectivity between strategic and operational planning. 
(2) Facilitates monitoring reports to publicly demonstrate operational progress toward 

achieving the strategic priorities.  
(3) Prepares, with input from Department Heads, quarterly transparency reports that 

are aligned to the strategic and operational plans. 
(b) Implements internal and external communication strategies to engage with stakeholders to 

ensure public access to information, as well as to enhance knowledge of and support for 
the County. 

(1) Develops and promotes the County’s brand as in appearance and perception. 
(2) Serves as the Administration’s Freedom of Information Act Officer (FOIA), 

responsible for coordinating the Administration’s central FOIA record, ensuring 
timely responses, and providing support for escalated requests as necessary.  

(3) Serves as the Administration’s Public Information Officer as part of the regional 
Winnebago County Public Information Officer’s all-hazards emergency response 
partners committee; responsible for providing a coordinated and standardized 
communications response in case of large-scale disaster.  

(c) Maintains a comprehensive policy management process to ensure policy maintenance, 
stakeholder access, and consistency.  

(d) Collaboratively develops, assesses, and leads strategic initiatives at all levels of the 
organization to ensure alignment with organizational standards and objectives. 

(1) Includes special project management as directed by the County Administrator; 
may be short- or long-term in nature, requiring ongoing collaboration with 
applicable Department Head. 

(2) Promotes decision-making to support cultural development, employee engagement, 
and long-term organizational sustainability. 

(e) Coordinates the County’s engagement in legislative affairs directly affecting the County. 
(1) Monitors and swiftly responds to legislative activity to support or oppose 

legislation relative to the County’s legislative agenda. 
(2) Works collaboratively with staff and elected officials to articulate the impact of 

legislative mandates and/or administrative rules on the County. 
(f) Other duties as assigned or required by the County Administrator. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon 
passage. 
 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

June 14, 2018 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Winnebago County Clerk shall place a certified copy 
of this Ordinance Amendment upon its adoption in the records of office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 

 
 

 
 Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

June 14, 2018 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 















































































18-018 
County Board: 6 /14/2018 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   David Kelly 
Submitted by:   Public Works Committee 

 
2018 CR 

 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TRACK SKID LOADER 
 

 

 
WHEREAS, Section 3-357 (7) of the Winnebago County Code sets forth the guidelines for the 

County’s participation in governmental joint purchasing agreements, and pursuant to the Illinois 
Governmental Joint Purchasing Act (30 ILCS 525/0.01 et seq.) the County has reviewed the 
National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) Cooperative Contract 032515-JDC. 
 

WHEREAS, the Highway Department is in need to replace its Track Skid Loader; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee of the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the proposal received for a 2018 John Deere 331G Track Loader and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

  
WEST SIDE TRACTOR SALES COMPANY 
3110 PRAIRIE RD 
ROCKFORD, IL 61102 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee has determined that the funding for the 
aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 

 
46100-46430 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, a Purchase Order with West Side Tractor Company, 3110 Prairie Rd, Rockford, IL 61102 
for not to exceed FIFTY-THREE THOUSAND AND TWENTY DOLLARS ($53,020.00), which is the 
difference between the original price of $66,520.00 and the trade-in value of $13,500 for a 2006 
Gehl CLT80 Track Loader. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any contract entered into by the County Board Chairman pursuant 
to the authority granted by this Resolution shall contain substantially the same terms as those 
contained in the quote attached. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Finance Director, Director of Purchasing County 
Engineer and County Auditor.



 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
        PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

DAVE KELLEY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 DAVE KELLEY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

DAVID BOOMER 
 
 

 DAVID BOOMER 
 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BERT GERL 
 
 

DAVE TASSONI 
 
 

 DAVE TASSONI 
 
 

JIM WEBSTER  JIM WEBSTER 
 
 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 


























































	Amended Agenda
	Agenda
	Prolamation
	Chairman's Report
	Administrator's Report
	Consent Agenda
	Finance Committee
	Budget Amendment 2018-029 Highway
	Request for Budget Amendment
	Res Authorizing Change of Plan Administrators for Deferred Comp & ICMA Retirement
	Authorized Signature Request Form
	Zoning Committee
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Executive Summary - Blast Chiller
	Res Awarding Bid for Blast Chiller
	Executive Summary - Laboratory Services
	Res Awarding Bid for Laboratory Services
	Res Approving Amendment to Health & Wellness Services Agree w/OSF Saint Francis
	Assignment/Assumption & Amendment Agreement
	Res Authorizing Chairman to Execute Lease Agreement at 555 North Court
	Ordinance Amending Section 62-14 (Discrimination/Harassment Policy) of Chapter 62
	Ordinance Amending Sections of Chap 2, Art II, Div. 2 of Code of Ordinances
	Ordinance Creating Sections of Chap 2, Art. III, Div. 5 (Operations Officer)
	Ordinance Creating Sections of Chap 2, Art III, Div 6 (Chief Strategic Initiatives Officer)
	Public Works Committee
	(18-015) Res Determining General Prevailing Rate of Hourly Wages
	(18-016) Res Authorizing an Agree for the Acceptance of Property of Transfer
	(18-017) Res Appropriating Local Share of Funds & Authorizing Execution of Local Public Agency Agreement
	(18-018) Res Authorizing Purchase of Track Skid Loader
	(18-019) Ordinance Amending Chapter 82 of the Winn. Cty. Code
	(18-020) Ordinance Amending Chapter 82 of the Winn. Cty. Code



